Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

Memorandum

Agenda Item No.
12(B)1

September 1, 2009

Honorable Chairman Dennis C. Moss
and Members, Board of County Commissioners

George
Report.i6 the Board of Coufity Commissioners on the Public Health Trust's

Audited Financial Results for Fiscal Year Ending September 30", 2008

The attached item is being placed on the Board of County Commissioners’ agenda at
the request of Eneida O. Roldan, MD, President/CEO of the Public Health Trust.
Pursuant to Ordinance 25A-5 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, the Public Heaith
Trust is required to report its prior year audit f ndings to the Board of County
Commissioners on an annual basis.

The attached is the audit findings for fiscal year ending on September 30th, 2008.

“Assistanf County Manager
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HEALTH SYSTEM Executive Office
Eneida O. Roidan Jackson Memorial Hospital
President / CEO 1611 N.W. 12" Avenue
Miami, Florida 33136-1096
305-585-6754
Date: June 17, 2009
To; Honorable Chairman Dennis C. Moss
and Members, Board of County Commissioners
From: Eneida O. Roldan, M.D,, MP.H., M.B.A.
Subject: Report to the Board of County Commissioners on the Public Health Trust’s Audited Financial Results for

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2008

Recommendation:

In accordance with Chapter 25A-5 of the code of Miami-Dade County, it is recommended that the Board approve the
attached Public Health Trust’s Audited Financial Results for fiscal year ending on September 30, 2008.

Scope:
The scope of this report is limited to financial results and audit findings relative to Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2008.

Fiscal Impact:
There is no fiscal impact to cither Miami-Dade County or the Public Health Trust associated with this report.

Background:

In accordance with Chapter 25A-5 of the code of Miami-Dade County, the Public Health Trust shall submit to the Board of
County Commissioners a report that reflects the result of its amnual aundit for the prior year performed by the Trust’s
external anditors.

The Trust’s External Auditor provided an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the Trust as of and for the
years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007. As a result, there were no material adjustments or major reporting weakness to
report by the auditors. There were seven findings, none of which materially impacted the financial statements, included in
the Management Letter. As of this date, the Trust has either implemented procedures or is in the process of implementing
procedures 1o address these findings and improve related accounting procedures and controls.

An Equal Opportunity Employer
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Management Letter

Management and the Fiscal Affairs Committee
of the Board of Trustees
Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, Florida

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida (the Trust) as of and for the year ended September 30 2008, in
accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, we considered its internal confrol over financial
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal confrol. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combmation
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record,
process or report data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accoumting principles such
that there is more than a remote likelibood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal
control. A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the
financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the internal control.

During our audit, we noted the following control deficiencies:

Cash Reconciliations

During our bank confirmation procedures, we noted that certain bank accounts maintained by the
Miami International Thoracic Center Surgical Services and the Miami Intemational Hand
Surgical Services (the Surgical Services) were not being recorded properly in the Trust’s
combined financial statements. Our testing indicated that the outside accountant utilized by
Surgical Services was not properly reconciling the recorded cash balance to the monthly bank
statements. This resulted in an aundit entry of approximately $1 million to increase cash and
decrease contractual services.

0903-1036768 1
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Recommendation

The Trust should establish procedures as part of the monthly financial statement close process to
make sure that proper reconciliation and review procedures are operating effectively at all of the
entities and remote locations included in the Trust. We suggest implementing a closing package
that should be submitted to the accounting department of the Trust on a monthly basis. This
closing package would docoment that the proper monthly reconciliations had been prepared and
reviewed by the appropriate designated members of management of the respective entities.

Management’s Response

The Trust is establishing a closing checklist with all activities related to the monthly financial
statement close process. The checklist will be implemented by May 2009 and should ensure that
all bank accounts are reconciled and reviewed by the designated individual on a monthly basis.

Regulatory Compliance

The Trust continues to investigate payments made to certain physicians who practice at Jackson
South Community Hospital (JSCH) and the possibility that those payments may have been made
at times when a current contract was not in effect or were not consistent with the terms of the
relevant contract. These payments could constitute violations of the physician self-referral and
anti-kickback statutes. This situation is being reviewed by outside counsel and the appropriate
self-disclosure of the situation has been made to representatives of the Office of the Inspector
General.

Recommendation

Inchude JSCH in the centralized contract management system that other entities within the Trust
already utilize. This would help assure that all contracts, and especially those with physicians,
are subject to the appropriate review by the Physician Services, Corporate Compliance and Legal
Departments of the Trust, as applicable. Furthermore, it would decrease the possibility that
payments were made to physicians that were not made pursuant to contracts in effect at the time
of the payment.

090310367568 2
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Management’s Response

A centralized process and policy have been developed and implemented whereby requests for
physician contracts are submitted to the Division of Physician Services for review of terms and
fair market value analysis. The completed package is submitted to a committee comprised of
representatives of the affected facility, Physician Services, Compliance, Procurement, Risk
Management, and the County Attorney’s Office for review and approval. Once approved, the
Physician Services Division oversees the execution of the contract and implementation of the
contract and monitors time frames for renewal. Proposed contracts other than physician services
Jfollow a different process for review pursuant to the procurement policies of the Public Health

Trust.

We have separately reported in our letter dated January 23, 2009 addressed to the Board of
Trustees of the Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, Florida certain matters involving
internal control and its operation that we considered to be significant deficiencies under
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, those
charged with governance, and others within the organization and is not intended to be and should

not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
Srnet ¥ WLP

January 23, 2009

0903-1036768
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, Florida

Years Ended September 30, 2008 and 2007
With Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants
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Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

The Board of Trustees of the
Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, and the pension trust fund of the Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida (the Trust), as of and for the years ended September 30, 2008 and
2007, which collectively comprise the Trust’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did
not andit the financial statements of Jackson Memorial Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation), a
discretely presented component wnit of the Trust, which represent 100% of the assets and public
support and revenues, of the discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements as
of and for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, were audited by other anditors whose
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
the Foundation, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits comtained in Govermment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Trust’s internal control over financial reporting. Qur audits included consideration of intermal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing andit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Trust’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles nsed and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion on the
financial statements of the Trust referred to above as of and for the years ended September 30,
2008 and 2007. -

As discussed in Note 1, the accompanying financial statements present only the Trust and are not
intended to present fairly the fipancial position of Miami-Dade County, Florida, as of
September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position for the years then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,

0810-0989910 1
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In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, and the pension trust fund of
the Trust as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 23, 2009, on our consideration of the Trust’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 16 and the required pension
disclosure information on pages 73 through 75 are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by the Government Auditing Standards
Board (GASB). We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the reqmred supplementary information. However, we de not audit the
information and express no opinion on it

Our andits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Trust’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information
included in the Schedules by Account on pages 76 through 81 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Schedules by
Account have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditfors in
the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audits and the report
of other auditors, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

As discussed in Note 16, during the year ended September 30, 2008 the Trust adopted the
provisions of Statement No. 45 of the Governmental Accounting Standaxds Board, Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.

Srnct ¥ WL?

January 23, 2009
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

September 30, 2008

This section of the Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, Florida (the Trust), annual
financial report presents management’s discussion and analysis of the Trust’s financial
performance during the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007. The purpose of the section is
to provide an objective analysis of the financial activities of the Trust based on currently known
facts, decisions, and conditions. Please read it in conmjunction with the Trust’s financial
statements, which follow this section.

Overview of the Combined Financial Statements

This report consists of three parts — management’s discussion and analysis, the audited financial
statements, and supplementary schedules.

The Trust utilizes three different funds to account for its activities, an enterprise fund, which
combines the activities of the operating fund of the Trust: a fiduciary fund, which reports
information about the net assets and changes in net assets of a foundation, which supports the
operations of the Trust; and a pension trast fund, which reports information about the net assets
and changes in net assets of the Trust’s employees’ pension plan. Complete financial statements
for the fiduciary fund can be obtained from the Jackson Memorial Foundation, Inc., at 901 N.W.
17 Street, Plaza Park East — Suite G, Miami, Florida 33136.

The pension trust fund does not issne financial statements.

The basic financial statements (statements of fund net assets, statements of revenue, expenses,
and changes in fund net assets, and statements of cash flows) present the financial position of the
Trust at September 30, 2008 and 2007 (the end of the fiscal year), and the results of its
operations and financial activities for the years then ended. These statements report information
about the Trust using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies, The
statements of fund net assets include all of the Trust’s assets and liabilities. The statements of
revenue, expenses, and changes in fund net assets reflect the year’s activities on the accrual basis
of accounting, ie., transactions are recorded when services are provided or obligations are
incurred, not when cash is received or paid. This statement reports the Trust’s net asset balances
and how they have changed. Net assets (the difference between assets and liabilities) are a way
to measure financial health or position. The statements of cash flows provide relevant
information about cash receipts and cash payments, and classify them as to operating, investing,
and capital with related financing activities. The financial statements include notes that explain
information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data.

0B10-0989910 3
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Key Financial Indicators

The following key financial indicators are for the Trust as a whole, inclusive of all of its primary
care centers, skilled nursing facilities, Jackson North Community Hospital, and Jackson South
Community Hospital. The current ratio, quick ratio, and days cash on hand ratios are indicators
of the liquidity of the Trust. The Trust’s current ratio and gnick ratio increased slightly during
2008. The improvement experienced in 2008 was aitributed mainly to higher cash and cash
equivalent balances, as well as, Patient’s account receivable and Due from Miami-Dade County,
while the level of current liabilities rose by almost 20% reflecting higher payables and accrued
expenses and other unrestricted liabilities. The days cash on hand remained unchanged at 42
days reflecting lower funded depreciation and a higher level of operating expenses. This is in
contrast to the levels reported between 2005 and 2006 when significant increases in Days Cash
on Hand were attributed mainly to a sharp increase in the funded depreciation account. Although
these funds are available to meet operating needs, they are primarily earmarked for capital
outlays. The days revenue in patient receivables is an indicator of how quickly the Trust collects
cash from its receivables. This indicator rose by 2 days, to 83 days at September 30, 2008,
compared to 81 days in 2007.

The significant increase registered in 2007 was due mainly to an augmentation in receivables
resulting from acquiring a new hospital at the beginning of the fiscal year 2007.

Table 1
Key Financial Indicators
2008 2007 2006
Current ratio 1.26 1.21 1.24
Quick ratio 1.20 1.15 1.31
Days cash on hand 4236 41.75 4496
Days revenue in patient receivables 82.15 80.85 69.67
0810-0989910 6
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Overall Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007 Financial Position

For the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Trust experienced an operating loss of
$426.0 million and $424.3 million, respectively. This represents an increase of $2.0 million or
0.5% when compared to the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007. This operating loss increase
is mainly attributed to higher operating expenses related to salaries and related costs as well as
contractual and purchased services which were partially offset by increases in net patient revenue
and grants and other revenue.

The Trust’s nonoperating revenues, net for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007,
summed $452.0 million and $390.3 million respectively, increasing $61.7 million or 15.8%
higher than the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007. This was the result of special assistance
from Miami-Dade County of $45.0 million in the year ended September 30, 2008.

Overall Fiscal Years 2007 and 2006 Financial Position

For the years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, the Trust experienced an operating loss of
$424.3 million and $319.1 million, respectively. This represents an increase of $105.2 million or
33% when compared to the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. This operating loss increase is
mainly attributed to higher operating expenses related to salaries and contractual and purchased
services which were partially offset by increases in net patient revenue and grants and other
revenue.

The Trust’s nonoperating revenues, net for the years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006,
summed $390.3 million and $376.3 million respectively, increasing $14.0 million or 3.7% higher
than the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. This was the result of a sales tax revenue increase
resulting from robust economic conditions and more tourism in the Miami-Dade County area,
increases in investment income due to higher average investment balances and yields, as well as
increases i other income. These increases were partially offset by reduced Miami-Dade County
funding and increased interest expense.

Fiscal Year 2009 Outlook

The Trust will continue to be challenged in fiscal year 2009. It is difficult to predict the impact of
future developments on the Trast of the following factors:

» Successful infegration of Jackson North Hospital which was acquired in December 2006,-

0810-0989910 7
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

e Payor mix changes — in particular changes to indigent care financial classes,
+ Inpatient capacity constraints,

e Ambulatory services volumes, which are traditionally utilized by uninsured and
underinsured patients,

o Confinued administrative burden related to Medicaid billing requirements,

e Potential changes in federal and state health care reimbursement regunlations,

o Costs of supplies, pharmaceuticals, and technology,

e Economic conditions and the related impact on tax-support,

e Negotiations with unions and collective bargaining agreements,

e Atiraction and retention of nurses and other clinical care providers, and

e Results of the Trust’s current revenue enhancement and cost reduction initiatives.
The level of uninsured residents in Miami-Dade County continues to grow and place additional
risk and burden on the Trust. However, the Trust has faced such challenges in the past and will
respond by secking cost savings and implementing revenue enhancement strategies including,
among other things, monitoring acute average length of stay, controlling related employee
staffing levels and standardization of equipment/supplies.
Significant Variances in Financial Statements
In this section, the Trust explains the reason for those financial statement items with significant

variances relating to fiscal 2008 amounts compared to fiscal 2007, and fiscal 2007 amounts
compared fo fiscal 2006.

0810-0989910 8
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents — was $125.3 million at September 30, 2008, compared to
$75.7 million at September 30, 2007. The 2008 increase of $49.6 million reflected a 65.5%
improvement over that reported in 2007 primarily caused by net cash provided from operating
and nonoperating activities of $94.1 million and net cash provided by investing activities of
$51.0 million, offset by net cash used in capital and financing activities of $94.1 million and a
$3.0 million increase in restricted cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents was $75.7 million at September 30, 2007, compared to $53.8 million
at September 30, 2006. The 2007 increase of $21.9 million reflected a 40.7% improvement over
that reported in 2006 primarily caused by net cash provided from operating and nonoperating
activities of $32.7 million and net cash provided by investing activities of $96.2 million, offset
by net cash used in capital and financing activitics of $104.4 million and a $2.5 million increase
in restricted cash and cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted Short-Term Investments and Restricted Long-
Term Investments — was $139.9 million at September 30, 2008, compared to $133.1 million at
September 30, 2007. This increase is attributed for the most part to interest income earned from
both Construction and Reserve accounts which are used to purchase bond approved projects as
these finds were transferred to a higher interest earning account with a local institution.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents, restricted short-term investments and restricted long-term
investments amounted to $133.1 million at September 30, 2007, compared to $193.8 miflion at
September 30, 2006. This decrease is attributed for the most part to bond funds used to purchase
bond approved projects. During the year, bond proceeds were used to purchase digital equipment
and the fixed assets of Parkway Hospital.

Assets Limited as to Use and Long-Term Investments — at September 30, 2008, asseis limited as
to use and long-term investments decreased by $42.3 million to $138.2 million compared to that
of $180.6 million for September 30, 2007. This reduction is primarily the result of transfers made
from the funded depreciation account to that of the General Operating Fund for the purpose of
acquiring additional capital assets. At September 30, 2007, assets limited as to use and long-term
investments decreased by $5.5 million compared to that for September 30, 2006. This decrease is
primarily the result of capital asset purchases made from the funded depreciation account.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Patients Accounts Receivable — The September 30, 2008, patient accounts receivable (net)
reached $268.4 million representing a 13.3% increase when compared to that as of
September 30, 2007 of $236.8 million. Jackson Memorial Hospital accounts receivable increased
by $31.6 million because of a number of factors including delays in the processing of claims by
the State of Florida resulting in higher Medicaid receivables, and the implementation of a new
Medicare billing system.

The September 30, 2007 patient accounts receivable (net) reached $236.8 million representing a
29.2% increase when compared to that as of September 30, 2006 of $183.2 million. Jackson
Memorial Hospital accounts receivable increased by $13.0 million because of the
implementation of the new clinical system near year end which caused delays in patient billings
and collections. In addition, receivables increased by $36.0 million due to the integration of a
new facility during fiscal year 2007.

Estimated Receivables Due From Other Third-Party Payors, Net — At September 30, 2008, the
net amount due to other third-party payors was $35.5 million, compared to a $23.6 million net
payable at September 30, 2007. This increase is mainly attributed to $15 million in receivables
from the Low Income Pool and Medicaid Disproportionate Share programs offset by concurrent
reductions in amounts due from Medicaid and Medicare cost report transactions.

At September 30, 2007, the net amount due to other third-party payors was $23.6 million,
compared to a $25.8 million net receivable at September 30, 2006. This decrease is primarily due
to a decrease in receivables from the Low Income Pool and Medicaid Disproportionate Share
programs and a reduction in amounts due from Medicaid and Medicare cost report transactions

Due from Miami-Dade County — The balance of $48.0 million at September 30, 2008 represents
a $17.3 million or 56.6% increase over that reported in 2007 reflecting the amount owed for
capital contribution programs. On the other hand, Due from Miami-Dade County balance of
$30.7 million at September 30, 2007 is comparable with the September 30, 2006 balance.

Supplies — The balance of $30.7 million at September 30, 2008, is $5.8 million higher than
September 30, 2007. This is primarily the result of higher inventory levels at both Jackson
Memorial Hospital and Jackson South. It should be noted that notwithstanding this increment,
the organization continued to benefit from the implementation of an inventory reduction plan fo

better manage inventory carrying cost begun in 2007.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The balance of $25.0 million at September 30, 2007, is $4.6 million lower than September 30,
2006. This is primarily the result of a $4.8 million inventory decline at the Jackson Memorial
Hospital Surgical Hospital Center. During the year the organization implemented an inventory
reduction plan to better manage inventory carrying cost.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets — The balance of $5.3 million at September 30,
2008, is comparable to that reported as of September 30, 2007 and 2006 respectively.

Capital Assets — The balance of $471.8 million at September 30, 2008, reflects an increase of
$24.5 million from September 30, 2007. This is mainly dae to capital asset purchases of
$50.4 million, construction in progress additions of $29.4 million offset by $50.4 million in
depreciation expense and $4.9 million in sales and retirements.

The balance at September 30, 2007, reflects an increase of $43.1 million from September 30,
2006. This is due to capital asset purchases of $97.2 million, construction in progress additions
of $13.6, million offset by $46.9 million in depreciation expense and $20.8 million in sales and
retirements.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses — The balance at September 30, 2008, of
$156.5 million reflects an increase from September 30, 2007, of $18 million. This is due
primarily to an increase in payables for Jackson Memorial Hospital and Jackson North Medical
Center of $10.0 million and $7.0, respectively.

The balance at September 30, 2007, of $138.6 million reflects an increase from September 30,
2006, of $11.3 million. This is due primarily to an increase in payables for IMH Health Plan of
$7.3 million and new payables of $8.7 million for Jackson North Medical Center. This was offset
by approximately a $2.4 million decrease in payables for Jackson Memorial Hospital.

Accrued Vacation and Sick Pay Benefits — The balance at September 30, 2008, of $101.9 million
reflects an increase from September 30, 2007, of $12.2 million or 13.6%. This is primarily the
result of vacation bank adjustments to reflect the cost-of-living adjustments terms in the new
collective bargammg agreement that went into effect on July 1, 2008 and increases in personnel
as a result of acquiring a hospital during the prior year.

0810-0989910 l g 11



Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The balance at September 30, 2007, of $89.7 million reflects an increase from September 30,
2006, of $13.4 million or 17.6%. This is primarily the result of vacation bank adjustments to
reflect the cost-of-living adjustments terms in the new collective bargaining agreement that went
into effect on July 1, 2007 and increases in persomnel as a result of acquiring a hospital during
the year.

Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Portion — The balance of $292.9 million at September 30,
2008, compared to $297.3 million for 2007. This reduction of $4.4 million was primarily due to
principal payments made during the year.

The balaunce of $297.3 million at September 30, 2007, is comparable to the September 30, 2006,
balance.

Estimated Self-Insurance Liability, Excluding Current Portion— The balance of $25.2 million at
September 30, 2008 reflected a 17.7% diminution from that of $30.7 million reported in 2007.

The balance of $30.7 million at September 30, 2007 is comparable to the September 30, 2006
balance

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Trust

Net Patient Service Revenue — Net patient service revenue increased by 11.1% or $118.2 million,
for the year ended September 30, 2008, as compared to September 30, 2007. This increase is
primarily due mainly to the effects of a 7.39% rate increase combined with a decrease in
deductions from revenues as a result of an improved payor mix.

Net patient service revemue increased by 11.1% or $118.2 million, for the year ended
September 30, 2007, as compared to September 30, 2006. This increase is primarily due to the
acquisition of a hospital which led to approximately $94.8 million in new revenue, increases in
the Low Income Pool and Disproportionate Share Programs and decreased level of charity. This
was partially offset by a prior year Medicaid transaction, which generated additional revenues of
approximately $56.6 million in fiscal year 2006.

Other Revenue — Otber revenue increased $31.4 million or 16.9% in the fiscal year ended

September 30, 2008, as compared to September 30, 2007. This increase mainly reflects the
additional JMH Health Plan revenue of approximately $28 million during 2008.

O810-09B9910 12
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Supplies for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, increased by $30.5 million or 15.7%
compared to fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. The increase is due mainly to supply expense
of $12.0 million related to a hospital acquired during fiscal year 2007, increase in JMH operating
room supply expense of $13.0 million and favorable settlement of a dispute with the Trust’s
former pharmacy provider during fiscal year 2006 which reduced the supply expense for that
year by approximately $6.6 million.

Other Operating Expenses — Other operating expenses fell by $1.6 million or 3.1% for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2008, as compared to September 30, 2007. The decline mainly relates
to favorable developments in professional liability expense based upon the Professional and
General Liability actuarial report as of September 30, 2008.

Other operating expenses increased by $5.4 million or 11.9% for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007, as compared to September 30, 2006. The increase is attributable primarily
to an increase in professional liability expense of $4.9 million.

Depreciation and Amortization — Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to
$50.4 million in 2008 compared to $46.9 million for 2007. The increase of $3.6 million or 7.7%
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 is due mainly to additions to fixed assets of $61.3
million mainly in the form of movable equipment and depreciated assets made daring 2008,

The increase of $7.5 million or 19.1% for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 is due
mainly because fixed asset purchases were $55 million higher in fiscal year 2007 as compared to
fiscal year 2006. Increase was due to the acquisition of. $35.0 million in fixed assets acquired
from a local hospital and $20 million in digital equipment purchases for JMH.

Total Nonoperating Revenues and Other Activity, Net — The increase of $61.7 million or 15.8%
in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 is due mainly to increases in property tax revenue of
$17 million, as well as Miami-Dade County Special Assistance of $45 million and the Graduate
Medical Educational portion of the Low income Pool program. The increase was offset by an
$11 million reduction in investment income and $3.5 million decline as sales tax revenue.

The increase of $14.0 million or 3.7% in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, is due mainly

to increases in property tax revenue of $20.4 million and the Graduate Medical Educational
portion of the Low income Pool program increased by $8.1 million.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Changes in Components of Fund Net Assets — Trust

As shown in the statements of fund net assets, the Trust assets are categorized into three
components:

e Unrestricted
e Tnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
s Restricted

Unrestricted — Unrestricted net assets decreased to $197.0 million at September 30, 2008, from
$199.7 million at September 30, 2007.

Unrestricted net assets decreased to $199.7 million at September 30, 2007, from $217.4 million
at September 30, 2006.

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt — Increased by $32.3 million during 2008, as
plant and equipment additions of $79.4 million were offset by depreciation expense of
$50.4 million and sales, retirement and adjustments of $4.9 million.

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt decreased by $15.3 million during 2007, as plant
and equipment additions of $110.8 million were offset by depreciation expense of $46.9 million

and sales, retirement and adjustments of $20.8 million. Also reducing the balance was a decrease
in related debt of $0.5 million and funds available for construction of $57.8 million

Restricted ~ Restricted fund net assets decreased to $530,000 at September 30, 2008, from
$4.4 million at September 30, 2007.

Restricted fund net assets decreased to $4.4 million at September 30, 2007, from $5.4 million at
September 30, 2006.

08100989910 15
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Trust continues to expand and improve its facilities. Additions to capital assets for the years
ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 were $61.3 million and $110.8 million, respectively. The
Trust is currently engaged in expansion programs at its facilities. The estimated costs to
complete all construction programs in process at September 30, 2008 are approximately
$300 miltion. The Trust anticipates financing these programs through a combination of currently
available cash, cash equivalents, the results of future operations and funding from Miami-Dade
County.

As previously described in fiscal 2005, the Trust issued a total of $300.0 million series 2005
bonds to refund all other bonds outstanding at the time and to fund a portion of the capital
commitments described above.

Financial Statement Impact of the Adoption of GASB 45

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 45, Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, in July
2004. The Trust was required to adopt this pronouncement in the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2008. This statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and
display of other postemployment benefits expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets),
note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary information in the financial reports
of state and local government employers.

0310-0989910 16
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Public Health Trust of

Miami-Dade County, Florida

Statements of Fund Net Assets — Trust

September 30
2008 2007

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 125,304,022 § 75,716,240

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 16,805,034 13,796,262

Restricted short-term investments 5,616,680 6,139,107

Assets limited as to use 24,308,294 17,362,850

Patients’ accounts receivable, less allowance for

doubtful accounts of approximately $474,432,309
in 2008 and $413,773,000 in 2007 268,379,813 236,791,029

Estimated receivables due from other third-party payors 43,211,017 45,463,023

Due from Miami-Dade County 48,029,401 30,663,886

Other receivables — unrestricted 13,624,677 13,246,388

Other receivables — restricted 6,080,963 9,253,764

Supplies 30,752,345 24,955,699

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5,291,572 5,197,108
Total current assets 587,403,818 478,585,356
Assets limited as to use 113,933,957 163,197,706
Restricted long-term investments 117,421,906 113,176,264
Capital assets, net 471,779,597 447,300,604
Other assets:

Unamortized bond costs 4,370,073 4,520,765

Security deposits 1,715,663 1,673,263

Other 2,496,380 2,557,694
Total noncurrent assets 711,717,576 732,426,296
Total assets $1,.299,121.394 $1.211,011,652
0810-0985910 17
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Public Health Trust of

Miami-Dade County, Florida

Statements of Fund Net Assets — Trust (continued)

September 30
2008 2007
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt b 4,910,000 $ 4,745,000
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 156,517,571 138,568,888
Accrued interest payable 4,728,973 4,784,332
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes withheld 30,962,248 22,694,637
Accrued vacation and sick pay benefits 101,919,594 89,735,287
Refunds due for patient services 24,540,782 22,691,205
Current portion of estimated self-insurance liability 5,869,852 5,569,852
Estimated payables due to other third-party payors 78,690,463 69,108,256
Due to Miami-Dade County 33,444,019 28,602,077
Other — unrestricted 15,755,607 5,346,800
Other — restricted 8,314,348 3,361,893
Total current liabilities * 465,653,457 395,208,227
Long-term debt, excluding current portion 292,949,025 297,344,543
Estimated self-insurance liability, excluding current portion 25,246,633 30,658,655
Due to Miami-Dade County, excluding current portion -~ 12,906,000
Other 16,446,304 1,747,311
Total noncurrent liabilities 334,641,962 342,656,509
Total liabilities 800,295,419 737,864,736
Commitments and contingencies
Fund npet assets:
Unrestricted 196,966,804 199,690,013
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 301,329,231 269,047,198
Restricted 529,940 4,409,705
Total fund net assets 498,825,975 473,146,916
Total liabilities and fund net assets $1.299.121.394 $1211.011.,652
See accompanying notes.
0B10-0929910 18
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Public Health Trust of

Miami-Dade County, Florida

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets — Trust

Operating revenues:
Net patient service revenue
Other revenue
Grants and other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and related costs

Contractual and purchased services
Supplies
Other operating expenses
Public Medical Assistance Trust Fund assessment
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Miami-Dade County funding
Miami-Dade County special assistance
Sales tax revenue
Investment income
Interest expense
Other income

Total nonoperating revenues, net

Increase (decrease) in fund net assets
Fund net assets — beginning of the year
Fund net assets — end of the year

See accompanying notes.

0810-0989910
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Year Ended September 30
2008 2007
$1,187,236,154 $1,069,017,573
216,720,550 185,325,834
31,645,037 27,919,457
1,435,601,741  1,282,262,864
1,010,214,555 947,680,440
499,130,813 424 434 009
240,000,320 224771,334
48,738,744 50,314,196
13,356,371 12,509,609
50,446,944 46,861,188
1,861,887,747  1,706,570,776
(426,286,006)  (424,307,912)
178,059,996 160,707,202
45,000,449 -
187,408,133 190,871,912
12,391,136 23,441,014
(15,029,263) (15,066,945)
44,134,614 30,345,939
451,965,065 390,299,122
25,679,059 (34,008,790)
473,146,916 507,155,706
$ 498.825975 $ 473,146,916
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Statements of Cash Flows — Trust

Operating activities
Cash received from patients, tenants, and third-pasty payors
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees for services

Net cash used in operating activities

Noncapital financing activity
Funds contributed by federal, state, and miscellaneous sources
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activity

Capital and related financing activities
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest paid
Purchases of capital assets, net
Jackson North acquisition
Net cash used i capital and related financing activities

Investing activities
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Income on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and equivalents, begimming of year
Cash and equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Loss from operations
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Patients’ accounts receivables and other receivables
Supplics ’
Due from Miami-Dade County
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts paysble and accrued expenses
Due to Miami-Dade County
Due to/from other third-party payors
Other current lisbilities
Estimated self-insurance lability
Other long-term liabilitics
Total adjustments
Net cash used in operafing activities

See accompanying notes.

0810-0989910
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Year Ended September 30
2008 2007
$ 1,430,170,259 $1,277,699,437
(786,760.376)  (694,474,370)
__ (987312360)  (933,819,998)
(343,902,477) (350,594,931)
439,603,191 383,293,817
439,603,191 383,293,817
(4,745,000) -
(14,419,450) (14,401,771)
(74,925,937) (55,030,993)
— (35,000,000)
(94,090387)  (104,432,764)
(60,344,624) (8,953,651)
98,939,715 81,669,556
12,391,136 23,441,014
50,986,227 96,156,919
52,596,554 24,423,041
89,512,502 65,089,461
$ 142.109.056 $ 895 12,502
$ (426,286,006) 3 (424,307,912)
50,446,944 46,861,188
232,345,464 167,924,887
(258,887,734)  (138,723,469)
(5,796,646) 4,567,081
(2,365,515) (1,225,000)
(75,550) (1,370,498)
40,250,180 25,246,712
(8,064,058) 5,613,549
9,582,207 (36,607,424)
15,361,262 479,932
5,112,022) 1,046,023
14,69 100,000
82,383,529 73,712,981
350,594,931
20



Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Statement of Financial Position — Foundation

September 30, 2008

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Interfund receivable/payable
Due from related party
Pledges receivable — current portion, net
Interest and dividends receivable
Other current assets
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Investments

Trust agreement receivable — charitable
remainder trust

Pledges receivable less current portion, net

Total assets

Liabilities and net assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total current habilities

Commitments and contingencies
Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Total net assets
Total habilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

02100989910

Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total

$ 298,268 § 1,848,750 § 2,147,018

(628,422) 628,422 -
896,806 ~ 896,306
965,702 3,232,445 4,198,147

14,388 3,387 17,775
52,235 1,325 53,560
1,598,977 5,714,329 17,313,306
457,929 - 457,929
113,195  8,025475 8,138,670
- 324,294 324,294
108,653 2,373,876 2482529

§ 2278754 S 16,437,974 § 18,716,728

$ 935924 S - § 935924
- 68,872 68,872

935,924 68872 1,004,796
1,342,830 - 1,342,830
- 16,369,102 16,369,102
1,342,830 16,369,102 17,711,932

h 2&78!754 $ 16,437,974 $ 18.716.728
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Public Health Trust of

Miami-Dade County, Florida

Statement of Financial Position — Foundation

September 30, 2007

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from related party
Pledges receivable — current portion, net
Intexest and dividends receivable
Other current assets
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Investments

Trust agreement receivable — charitable
remainder trust

Pledges receivable less current portion, net

Total assets

Liabilities and net assets
Current Iiabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Total current liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

0810-0989910

Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 766,659 $ 2,707,112 $ 3,473,771
642,820 — 642,820
542,000 2,352,431 2,894,431
27,168 -~ 27,168
78,918 — 78,918
2,057,565 5,059,543 7,117,108
478,495 - 478,495
576,071 9,214,237 9,790,308
- 314,806 314,806
588,919 4,120,144 4,709,063

$ 3,701,050

$ 18,708,730

$ 22,409,780

$ 663,007 $ - $ 663,007
663,007 = 663,007
3,038,043 ~ 3,038,043

— 18,708,730 18,708,730

3,038,043 18,708,730 21,746,773
_$ 3,701,050 _$ 18,708,730 _$ 22,409,780
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Statement of Activities — Foundation

Year Ended September 30, 2008

Public support and revenues:
Donations for Intemnational Kids Fund Program
Daonations for Holtz Children’s Hospital Campaign, net
Danations for UM/IMH Liver Center
Donation for IMH/Breast Cancer Center
Donations for UM/Jackson Trauma Center
Donation for JMH Patient Edncation
Grant Awards Revenue
Other support
Change in present value discount of pledges receivable
Special events, net of direct costs of $1,609,350
Net public support

Interest income and dividends, net of
investment fee

Net realized gains on investments

Net unrealized gains on investments

Total public support and revemucs before net
assets released from restrictions

Net assets released from restrictions:
Satisfaction of program restrictions

Total public support and revenues

Expenses including direct suppart payments:
Program services:
International Kids Fund
University of Miami/Jackson Memorial
Medical Center
Grant Award Expenses - Community Access Program
Grant Award Expenses - Other Program
Total program services
Management and general
Fundraising
Total expenses including direct support payments
Change in net assets
Net assets at beginoing of year
Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

0810-0589910

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

) - 3 2,013,190 S 2,013,190
- 1,406,420 1,406,420

- 40,483 40,483

- 69,802 69,802

- 125,392 125,392

- 485,000 485,000

801,970 925,105 1,727,075
1,252,654 1,264,424 2,517,078
(42,438) (55,055) (97,493)

: — 962,505 962,505
2,012,186 7,237,266 9.249 452
192,240 189,050 381,290
(18,862) 11,856 (7,006)
(1,463,607 (618,022) (2,081,629)
721,957 6,820,150 7,542,107
9,159,778 (9,159,778) -
9,881,735 (2,339,628) 7,542,107
2,303,518 - 2,303,518
5,114,355 - 5,114,355
1,503,111 - 1,503,111
8,920,984 - 8,920,984
1,051,300 - 1,051,300
1,604,664 - 1,604,664
11,576,948 - 11,576,948
(1,695,213) (2,339,628) (4,034,341)
3,038,043 18,708,730 21,746,773

s 1342830 S 16360102 _§ ~ 17,711,932
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Statement of Activities — Foundation

Year Ended September 30, 2007
- Temporarily
Unrestricted Restrieted Total
Public support and revenues:

Donations for International Kids Fund Program $ - 3 2,274959 $ 2,274,959

Donations for Holtz Children’s Hospital Campaign, net - 1,174,069 1,174,069

Donations for UM/JIMH Liver Center - 122,994 122,994

Donation for IMH/Breast Cancer Center - 73,803 73,803

Donations for UM/Jackson Trauma Center - 37,923 37,923

Grant Awards Revenue 642,820 606,663 1,249,483

Other support 1,409,392 1,831,610 3,241,502

Change in present value discount of pledges receivable (54,479) 236,921 182,442

Special events, net of direct costs of $1,034,189 ) — 1,221,033 1,221,033
Net public support 1,998,233 7,579,975 9,578,208
Interest income and dividends, net of

investment fee 266,802 117,796 384,598
Net realized gains on investments 333,591 - 333,591
Net unrealized gains on investments 668,440 158,314 826,754
Total public support and revemes before net

assels released from restrictions 3,267,066 7,856,085 11,123,151
Net assets released from restrictions:

Satisfaction of program restrictions 9,042,946 (9,042,946) -
Total public support and revenues 12,310,012 (1,186,861) 11,123,151
Expenses including direct support payments:

Program services:

International Kids Fund 1,788,573 - 1,788,573
University of Miami/Jackson Memorial
Medical Center 6,585,730 - 6,585,730
Grant Award Expenses - Community Access Program 531,303 - 531,303
Grant Award Expenses - Other Program 621,629 — 621,629
Total program services 9,527,235 - 9,527,235
Management and general 726,293 - 726,293
Fundraising 1,337,225 — 1,337,225
Total expenses including direct support payments 11,590,753 — 11,590,753
Change in net assets 719,259 (1,186,861) (467,602)
Net assets at beginning of year 2,318,784 19,895,591 22214 375
‘Net assets at end of year s 3,038043 $ 18708730 § 21,746,773
See accompanying notes.
0810-0389910 24
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets — Pension Trust Fund

September 30
2008 2007
Assets
Assets whose use is limited:
Externally restricted under pension plan agreement $ 220,696,184 $ 219,845,898

$ 220,696,184 $ 219,845,898

Liabilities and restricted net assets

Due to Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, Florida $ 2,126,093 $ 1,307,147

Restricted net assets reserved for employees’ pension benefits 218,570,091 218,538,751
$ 220.696.184 3 219,845,898

See accompanying notes.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets — Pension Trust Fund

Year Ended September 30
2008 2007
Net assets reserved for employees’ pension benefits:
Balance at beginning of year $ 218538,751 $ 159,363,769
Additions:
Pension contributions 38,067,887 33,432,274
Net realized and unrealized gains on pension
trust fund investments ‘ (37,217,600) 26,177,523
850,287 59,609,797
Deductions:
Participants benefit expense 818,947 434 815
318,947 434,815
Net increase in net assets reserved for employees’
pension benefits 31,340 59,174,982
Balance at end of year $ 218570091 $ 218,538,751
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2008

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Effective October 1, 1973, the Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, Florida (the Trust),
was created by county ordinance to provide for an independent governing body (the board of
trustees or Board) responsible for the operation, governance, and maintenance of “designated
facilities.” Currently, the Trust is responsible for Jackson Memorial Hospital (the Hospital),
Highland Park (a division of the Hospital), Jackson North (a division of the Hospital formerly
known as Parkway Regional Medical Center), JMH Health Plan (the Health Plan), North Dade
Primary Health Care Facility (North Dade), Infant Shelter (the Shelter), Home Health Care
(HHC), Liberty City Medical Center (Liberty City), Corrections Health Services (CHS), Jackson
Medical Towers (the Towers), Perdue Medical Center (Perdue), and Human Resource Health
Center (HRHC), Jackson South (formerly known as Deering Hospital), and Jackson North
Community Mental Health (formerly Locktowns Community Mental Health Centers, Inc.).

Jackson Memorial Hospital is a teaching hospital operating in conjunction with the University of
Miami School of Medicine, which provides staff and services under an amnual operating
agreement. North Dade, Liberty City and CHS provide outpatient and emergency care. The
Towers were purchased from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and include
support facilities relating to the Hospital. Perdue and HRHC are two skilled nursing facilities
transferred from Miami-Dade County (the County) on October 1, 1991.

In July 1995, the Trust entered into a contract with the State of Florida Department of Health and
Rehabilitative Services (HRS) to provide financial, adminisirative and operational support
services to Juanita Mann Center (JMC), Rosie Lee Wesley Center, Downtown Family Medical
Center, North Miami Center and Southeast Dental Medical Center, which are HRS clinics
providing primary care services. The Trust entered into a management contract with Humana,
Inc., which transfers management of all the HRS clinics, except IMC, to Humana, Inc.

In June 2001, the Trust acquired Deering Hospital, a 200-bed, acute-care hospital for
approximately $35,700,000 in cash from an unrelated party. The transaction was accounted for
as a purchase. The excess purchase price over fair market value of the underlying assets,
primarily property, equipment and inventory, was allocated to goodwill, which is being
amortized over 40 years.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In June 2003, the Trust acquired five properties from Locktowns Community Mental Health
Centers, Inc. for approximately $2,600,000 in cash. The transaction was accounted for as a
purchase. The purchase price of the underlying assets, primarily property and equipment,
approximated fair values.

In December 2006, the Trust acquired Parkway Regional Medical Center, a 382-bed acute-care
hospital for approximately $35,000,000 from an unrelated party. The transaction was accounted
for as a purchase. The purchase price was allocated to the underlying assets, primarily property
and equipment, based upon their respective fair values.

The Trust is an enterprise fund of the County. The accompanying financial statements are not
intended to be a complete presentation of the financial position of the County, and the results of
its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The statements of fund net assets and revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets are
presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Funds which are restricted by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations are shown
as restricted funds.

Jackson Memorial Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is a legally separate, tax-exempt component
unit of the Trust. The Foundation acts primarily as a fand-raising organization to supplement the
resources that are available to the Trust in support of its programs. The board of the Foundation
is self-perpetuating and consists of community members. Although the Trust does not control the
timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon,
that the Foundation holds and invests are restricted to the activities of the Trust by the donors.
Because these restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit
of, the Trust, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the Trust and is discretely
presented in the Trust’s financial statements.

During the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Foundation distributed approximately
$4.099,000 and $1,537,000, respectively, to the Trust for both restricted and unrestricted

purposes. Complete financial statements, for the Foundation can be obtained from the
Foundation at 901 N.W. 17® Street, Plaza Park East — Suite G, Miami, Florida 33136.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Other revenue increased $41.8 million or 29.2% in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, as
compared to September 30, 2006. This increase resulted from an increase in JMH Health Plan
revenue of $40.8 million.

Grants and Other — Grants and other of $31.6 million for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2008, depicted a $3.7 million or 13.3% increase over that reported in 2007 given the receipt of a
new $3.2 million grant from FEMA to cover the cost of hurricane shutters in numerous building
facilities.

Grants and other of $27.9 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, is comparable to
the fiscal year end 2006 balance.

Salaries and Related Costs — Salaries and related costs increased $62.5 million or 6.6% in the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, as compared to September 30, 2007. This increase
resulted from approximately a 4% rise in average salaries and a 1.9% increase in FTEs during

the year.

Salaries and related costs increased $132.0 million or 16.2% in the fiscal year ended
Septermber 30, 2007, as compared to September 30, 2006. This increase resulted from
approximately a 5% rise in average salaries and an 11% increase in FTEs due to the acquisition
of a hospital during the year.

Contractual and Purchased Services — Contractual and purchased services increased
$74.7 million or 17.6% in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, as compared to
September 30, 2007. This is attributed to an increase of $22 million in JMH Health Plan paid
claims, as well as, higher expenses related to professional fees and doctors contracts of
$13 million and $11 million, respectively, and an additional $8 million increment in special
services fee.

Contractual and purchased services increased $78.5 million or 22.7% in the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007, as compared to September 30, 2006. This is atiributed to increases in JMH
Health Plan paid claims due to the addition of new programs totaling $42.0 million, expenses
totaling $18.0 million for a newly acquired hospital and the balance was due to inflation.

Supplies — Supplies for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, increased by $15.2 million or
6.8% to $240 million. This surge was mainly caused by $8 million in medical/surgical and drugs

related expenses incurred at Jackson Memorial Hospital and an additional $4 million at Jackson
North Medical Center.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The pension trust fiund is a fiduciary fund used to account for assets held by Northem Trust Bank
for the benefits of employees of the Trust who participate in the Public Health Trust Defined
Benefit Retirement Plan (the Plan).

The financial statements of the pension trust fund use the full accrual basis of accounting
whereby employer contributions to the Plan are recognized when due, and benefits are
recogunized when due and payable to the plan participants in accordance with the terms of the

Plan.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounting Standards

GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, offers the option of following all
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards issued afier November 30, 1989,
unless the latter conflict with or contradict GASB promouncements, or not following FASB
standards issued afier such date. The Trust clected the option not to follow FASB
pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989.

The Foundation is a private nonprofit organization that reports under FASB standards, including
FASB Statement No. 117, Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Organizations. As such,
certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue
recognition criteria and presentation featuires. No modifications have been made to the
Foundation’s financial information in the Trust’s financial reporting entity for these differences.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accountii:g Policies (continued)

The United States Government, the State of Florida and the County make capital grant funds
available to the Trust to fund the purchase of certain assets or the construction of various
projects. As required by GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Transactions, capital contributions include capital grants which are reported in the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets — Trust.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trust considers all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Trust routinely invests its surplus operating funds in money
market mutual funds and ovemight repurchase agreements. These funds generally invest in
highly liquid U._S. government and agency obligations.

Investments

Investmeants include U.S. government securities, U.S. govemment agency securities, commercial
paper, and U.S. Treasury bills carmied at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses are
included in nopoperating income.

Investment income on investments held by bond trustee, assets limited as to use for self-
insurance programs and on all other investments are reported as nonoperating income.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include self-insurance trust arrangements; designated assets set aside by
the Board or the County for future capital improvements, over which the Board retains control
and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes; and assets set aside in accordance
with agreements with third-party payors, the County, and the Florida Department of Financial

Services Office of Insurance Regulation. Amounts required to meet current Habilities have been
classified as current assets in the accompanying Statements of Fund Net Assets — Trust.

Supplies

Supplies, consisting primarily of pharmaceutical and medical and surgical supplies, are stated at
the lower of cost (principally determined using average cost) or market.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital Assets

The County gave the Trust title to, and operating control of, all items of hospital personal
property, and possession and operating control of, but not title to, all hospital real property at the
inception of the Trust and thereafier acquired. In connection with the acquisition of Jackson
South, the County gave possession and operating control of, but not title to, all hospital real
property of Jackson South, and title and operating confrol of all items of hospital personal
property of Jackson South. The Trust does not have title for real property with an approximate
cost of $572,288,000 and $560,209,000 as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Trust capitalizes all items with an initial cost of $5,000 or greater and an expected useful life -
of two years or more. The Trust’s capital assets are stated at cost to the Trust or to the County, or

if donated property, at fair market value at the date of donation. Assets under capital leases are

stated at the present value of future minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease and are

amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter period of the lease term or the estimated

useful life of the equipment. Such amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in

the financial statements. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the

estimated useful lives of the related assets based on American Hospital Association guidelines as

summarized below:

Useful life

Land improvements 2-25 years

Buildings 5-40 years

Fixed equipment 5-20 years

Movable equipment 3-20 years
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill, which represents the excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets acquired, is
amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected periods to be benefited, generally 40 years.
The Trust assesses the recoverability of this intangible asset by determining whether the
amortization of the goodwill balance over its remaining life can be recovered through
undiscounted future operating cash flows of the acquired hospital.

Costs of Borrowing

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets are
capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. Interest costs associated with
that portion of the Trust’s revenue bonds used to construct qualifying assets, less interest earned
on temporary investment of the unexpended proceeds of those borrowings, are also capitalized as
a component of the cost of acquiring the qualifying assets.

Debt issuance costs are amortized over the life of the debt, using the straight-line method which
approximates the effective-interest method.

Bonds Payable

The Trust is not empowered to borrow funds. Long-term financing is generally accomplished by
the issuance of bonds or other debt by the County, which is reflected as long-term debt in the
accompanying financial statements.

Refunding of Debt

For current and advance refundings resulting in the defeasance of debt, the difference between
the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt is deferred and amortized as a

component of interest expense using the straight-line method over the remaining life of the old
debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. The difference in these amounts, to the
extent unamortized, is accounted for as an element of the carrying cost of the related debt.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Self-Insurance Programs

The provision for estimated self-insured programs — medical malpractice claims and workers’
compensation includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims
incurred but not reported. The estimates for self-insured claims are continually reviewed and
adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new information becomes known.

Restricted Net Assets

Restricted net assets are those whose use by the Trust has been limited by donors to a specific
time period or purpose or whose use has been limited under bond indenture arrangements.

Gifis of cash and other assets are reported at fair value as restricted support if they are received
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires,
that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, restricted
funds are transferred to unrestricted net assets. Transfers used for current operations are included
in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets — Trust as a reduction
of the related expense. The Trust first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred
for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets — Trust

All transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
health care services are considered to be operating activities and are reported as operating
revenue and operating expenses. Interest income, interest expense, and peripheral or incidental
transactions are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Trust has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Trust at

amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively
determined rates per discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges and per-diem payments.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments
under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued
on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in the year of
final settlement as an adjustment to the provision for contractual allowance in that year’s
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets — Trust. Final settlements under
these programs are subject to administrative review and audit by third-party payors. In the
opinion of management, adequate provision has been made in the accompanying financial
statements for adjustments that may result from such reviews and andits.

Charitable Services

In pursuing its mission, the Trust provides services to financially disadvantaged individuals in
the community in which it operates, despite the lack or adequacy of reimbursement for those
services.

The Trust maintains records to identify and monitor the level of such services, as follows:

The Trust provides care to patients regardless of their ability to pay. All or a portion of, the
charges incurred at established rates are classified as charity by reference to the Trust’s
established policies. Essentially, these policies define charitable services as those for which
no payment is anticipated. In assessing a patient’s ability to pay, the Trust utilizes generally
recognized poverty-income levels for the respective community, but also includes certain
cases where incurred charges are comsidered to be beyond the patient’s ability to pay.
Because the Trust does not pursue the collection of amoumts determined to meet the criteria
under its “charity care” policy, such amounts are not reported as reverme.

The Trust provides services to other indigent patients under various state of Florida programs
which pay health care providers amounts which are less than the cost of the services provided
to the recipients. The difference between the cost of services provided to these indigent
persons and the expected reimbursement is also considered to be charitable service.

In addition to the services that are provided to financially disadvantaged individuals, the Trust
provides certain community health services at no charge to the public, including various
educational programs. Costs related to these services are included in operating expenses.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Other Revenue

Premium revenue is recognized by the Health Plan during the period in which the Health Plan is
obligated to provide services to its members.

Unpaid Medical Claims

The unpaid medical claims related to the Health Plan are included in other liabilities. The unpaid
medical claims include accruals for hospital and other medical claims incurred as well as those
incurred but not reported. The accrual for inpatient claims is based on a per diem rate for
outstandimg bed days and on experience trends for outpatient and other medical claims.

Income Taxes

The Trust is exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is provided for in the accompanying
financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2007 financial statements to conform to the 2008
presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on the previously reported results of operations
or total fund net assets.

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
Deposits and Investments

The Trust’s investment authority is derived from Florida Statntes Chapter 218.415 and by
County Ordinance. Time deposits made in banks and savings and loans associations must be
made with qualified public depositories in accordance with Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. All
qualified public depositories, as defined under Florida Statutes, are required to pledge eligible
collateral having a market value equal to or greater than the average daily or monthly balance of
all public deposits times the depository’s collateral pledging level, The pledging level may range
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)

from 50% to 125% depending upon the depository’s financial condition and establishment
period. All collateral must be deposited with an approved financial institution. Any losses to
public depositors are covered by applicable deposit insurance, sale of securities pledged as
collateral and, if necessary, assessments against other qualified public depositories of the same
type as the depository in default.

At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the fair market value of cash, cash equivalents and investments
included the following:

2008 2007

Fixed investments — Federal Treasuries; Federal Agency

Securities and commercial paper $ 157,260,994 $ 139,025,720
Investments not subject to categorization:

State Board of Administration Pooled Investment account - 23,778,009

Money market accounts 908,659 699,114
Total investments 158,169,653 163,502,843
Deposits 245,069,523 225,230,972
Interest receivable 150,717 654,614
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments § 403,389,893 $ 389,388,429
Credit Risk

The Trust’s Investment Policy (the Policy), minimizes credit risk by restricting authorized
investments to: Local Govemment Surplus Funds Tmst Fand or any intergovernmental
investment pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act; Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) registered money market funds with the highest credit quality
rating: from a nationally recognized rating agency; interest-bearing time deposits or savings
acconuts in qualified public depositories, pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 280.02, which are
defined as banks, savings banks, or savings associations organized under the laws of the United
States with an office in this state that is authorized to receive deposits, and has depostt insurance
under the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act; direct obligations of the United States
Treasury; federal agencies and instrumentalities; securities of, or other interests in, any open-end
or closed-end management-type investment company or investment trust registered under the

0810-0985910 36

L3



Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)

Investment Company Act of 1940, provided that the portfolio is limited to the obligations of the
United States government or any agency or instrumentality thereof and to repurchase agreements
fully collateralized by such United States government obligations, and provided that such
investment company or investment trust takes delivery of such collateral either directly or
through an authorized custodian; Commercial paper of prime quality with a stated maturity of
270 days or less from the date of its issnance, which has the highest letter and numerical rating as
provided for by at least one nationally recognized rating service; bankers’ acceptances which
have a stated maturity of 180 days or less from the date of their issuance, and have the highest
letter and numerical rating as provided for by at least orie nationally recognized rating service,
and are drawn on and accepted by commercial banks and which are eligible for purchase by the
Federal Reserve Bank; investments in repurchase agreements collateralized by securities
authorized by this policy. Securities lending — securities or investments purchased or held under
the provisions of this section may be loaned to securities dealers or financial ipstitutions
provided the loan is collateralized by cash or securities having a market value of at least 102% of
the market value of the securities loaned upon initiation of the transaction.

At September 30, 2008, the Trust’s investment securities had the following credit ratings:

Fair Market
Value Credit Rating*

U.S. Government agency securities, by issuer:

Federal Farm Credit Banks $ 12,678,416 AAA
Federal Home Loan Banks 56,323,571 AAA
Federal National Mortgage Association 29,453,907 AAA
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 11,311,182 AAA
Treasury Bills 16,160,047 AAA
Commercial paper 31,333,871 Al/P1
$ 157,260,994
* Standard & Poor’s ratings.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)

At September 30, 2008, the camrying amount of the Trust’s bank deposit accounts was
approximately $125,304,000. The Trust’s bank balances totaled approximately $126,303,000 at
September 30, 2008, and were deposited in qualified public depositories, as required by
Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.

At September 30, 2007, the Trust’s investment securities had the following credit ratings:

Fair Market
Value Credit Rating*

U.S. Government agency securities, by issuer:

Federal Farm Credit Banks $ 5,786,166 AAA

Federal Home Loan Banks 40,443,600 AAA

Federal National Mortgage Association 34,752,668 AAA

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 20,147,534 AAA

Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation 2,688,004 AAA
Commercial paper 35,207,748 AAA

$ 139,025,720

* Standard & Poor’s ratings.

At September 30, 2007, the camrying amount of the Trust’s bank deposit accounts was
approximately $225,231,000. The Trust’s bank balances totaled approximately $87,186,000 at
September 30, 2007, and were deposited in qualified public depositories, as required by
Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Finanecial Statements (continued)

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)
Custodial Credit Risk

The Policy requires that bank deposits be secured per Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. This
requires local governments to deposit funds only in financial institutions designated as qualified
public depositories by the Chief Financial Officer of the State of Florida and creates the Public
Deposits Trust Fund, a multiple financial institution pool with the ability to assess its member
financial institutions for collateral shortfalls if a default or insolvency has occurred. The Policy
requires the execution of a Custodial Safekeeping Agreement (CSA) for all purchased securities
and shall be held for the credit of the Trust in an account separate and apart from the assets of the
financial institution.

At September 30, 2008 and 2007, approximately $123,039,000 and $119,315,000, respectively,
of the Trust’s deposits and investments were held in a pooled account at the County.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Policy establishes limitations on portfolio composition by investment type and by issuer to
limit its exposure to concentration of credit risk. The Policy provides that a maximum of 30% of
the portfolio may be invested in SEC registered money market funds with no more than 10% to
any single money market fund; a maximum of 20% of the portfolio may be invested in
non-negotiable Interest bearing time certificates of deposit savings accounts with no more than
5% deposited with any one issuer; a maximum of 75% of the total portfolio may be invested in
federal agencies and instrumentalities; a maximum of 5% of the portfolio may be invested in
open-end or closed-end funds; a maximum of 50% of the portfolio may be invested in prime
conmmercial paper with a maximum of 5% with any one issuer; a maximum of 20% of the
portfolio may be invested in bankers’ acceptances with a. maximum of 25% with any one issuer;
a maximum of 60% of the portfolio may be invested in both commercial paper and bankers’
acceptances; a maximum of 10% of the portfolio may be invested with any one institution.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)

At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the composition of the Trust’s investments by investment type
as a percentage of total investments were as follows:

Percentage of Portfolio
2008 2007

U.S. Government agency securities, by issuer:

Federal Farm Credit Banks 8.0% 3.5%

Federal Home Loan Banks 35.6% 24.7%

Federal National Mortgage Association 18.6% 21.3%

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 12% 12.3%

Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation 0.0% 1.7%
U.S. Treasury bills 10.2% 0.0%
Commercial paper 19.8% 21.5%
State Board of Administration Pooled Investment account 0.0% 14.6%
Money market accounts 0.6% 0.4%

Interest Rate Risk

The Policy limits interest rate risk by requiring the matching of known cash needs and
anticipated net cash outflow requirements; following historical spread relationships between
different security types and issuers; evaluating both interest rate forecasts and maturity dates to
consider short-term market expectations. The Policy requires that investments made with current
operating funds shall maintain a weighted-average maturity of no longer than one year.
Investments for bond reserves, construction funds and other non-operating funds shall have a
term appropriate to the need for funds and in accordance with debt covenants. The Policy limits
the maturity of an investment to a maximum of five years.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)

As of September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Trust had the following investments with the respective
weighted-average maturity in years.

Weighted-Average

Maturity

2008 2007

U.S. Government agency securities, by issuer:
Federal Farm Credit Banks 1.27 1.95
Federal Home Loan Banks 225 1.92
Federal National Mortgage Association 0.70 0.57
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 1.23 1.08
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation 0.00 0.22
U.S. Treasury bills 0.60 0.00
Commercial paper 0.03 0.08

Foreign Currency Risk

The Policy limits foreign currency nisk by excluding foreign investments as an investment
option.

3. Restricted Assets, Net

Restricted assets, net of other restricted current liabilities, are available for the following
purposes at September 30, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Restricted programs-capital expenditures, plant
expansions and other $ 123,717,863 $ 124,442,380
Federal health services programs 13,892,371 14,561,124
Total restricted $ 137,610,234 §$ 139,003,504
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Net Patient Service Revenue

The Trust has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Trust at
amounts different from its established rates. Contractual adjustments wunder third-party
reimbursement programs represent the difference between the Trust’s established rates for
services and amounts reimbursed by third-party payors. A summary of the payment
arrangements with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare — Approximately 16% of the Trust’s patient revenue was derived from services
rendered to Medicare patients under the Medicare program during fiscal year 2008 and about
14% during 2007. Medicare inpatient services for acute and rehabilitation services are paid at
prospectively determined rates per discharge. These rates vary according to a patient
classification system based on clinical, diagnostic and treatment factors. Psychiatric services are
reimbursed based on the lower of cost or a fixed amount per discharge. Outpatient services are
reimbursed on a prospectively determined fee schedule with final settlement determined after
audit of the annual cost report submiited by the Trust.

The Trust’s Medicare cost reports have been audited by the Medicare fiscal intermediary through
September 30, 2003. The Trust has filed Medicare cost reports through September 30, 2007, and
a provision has been recorded through the year ended September 30, 2008.

Medicaid — Approximately 29% and 31% of the Trust’s patient revenue was derived from
services rendered under the Medicaid program during fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicaid-program beneficiaries are reimbursed
prospectively for covered services on the basis of historical cost as determined under regulations
of the Medicaid program. The Trust is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final seftlement
determined after submission of ammual cost reports by the Trust and audits thereof by the
Medicaid fiscal intermediary. The Trust’s Medicaid cost reports have been audited by the
Medicaid fiscal intermediary through September 30, 2000. The Trust has filed Medicaid cost
reports through September 30, 2007.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Net Patient Service Revenue (continued)

Other — Approximately 23% of the Trust’s patient revenue was derived from services rendered
under various other provider agreements during fiscal year ended in 2008 compared to 28% for
2007. The Trust has entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred-provider organizations. The basis for
payments to the Trust under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per
discharge, discounts from established charges and prospectively determined daily rates.

Net patient service revenue consisted of the following for the years ended September 30, 2008
and 2007:;

2008 2007

Patient setvice revenue:

Inpatient service $ 2,975266,761 $ 2,820,206,868

Ambulatory services 1,024,010,355 937,800,492
Total gross patient charges 3,999.277,116 3,758,007,360
Charity care (1,007,570,381) (1,001,095,860)
Contractual and other allowances (1,572,125,117) (1,519,969,042)
Provision for doubtful accounts (232,345,464) (167,924,885)
Total deductions from gross charges (2,812,040,962) (2,688,989,787)
Net patient service revenue $ 1,187,236,154 $ 1,069,017,573

5. Concentration of Credit Risk

Patients’ accounts receivable consist primarily of receivables from patients and third-party
payors. In the course of providing health care services, the Trust grants credit to patients,
substantially all of whom are residents of the County. The Trust generally does not require
collateral or other security in extending credit to patients; however, it routinely obtains
assignments of (or is otherwise entitled to receive) patients’ benefits payable under their health
insurence programs, plans or policies (for example, Medicare, Medicaid, health maintenance
organizations, preferred provider organizations and commercial insurance policies).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Concentration of Credit Risk (continued)

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors based on gross patient charges at
September 30, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

2008 2007
Medicare 16% 11%
Medicaid 29 24
Commercial 32 44
Patients 23 21

100% 100%

The allowance for doubtful accounts represents amounts, which, in the Trust’s judgment, will be
adequate to absorb write-offs of existing patient receivable balances, which may become
uncollectible. Estimation of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on several factors
which include, but are not limited to, analytical review of loss experience of the various payor
classes in relation to outstanding receivables and judgment with respect to the impact of current
economic conditions. The Trust believes that the allowance for doubtful accounts is adequate.

6. Transactions with the County

Under the terms of the 2008 and 2007 operating agreement (the Agreement) between the County
and the Trust, the County funded the Trust approximately $178,060,000 and $160,707,000,
respectively, from ad valorem taxes, to defray the costs of its general operations. Such amounts
have been included in nonoperating revenue in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Assets — Trust. The amounts of future funding from the County are
dependent, in part, on the availability of ad valorem taxes to do so.

The County provided various services to the Trust under the terms of the Agreement, such as
legal, direct and indirect costs, which for 2008 and 2007 amounted to approximately $512,000
and $4,457,000, respectively. Such supplies and services are billed at cost. At September 30,
2008 and 2007, the Trust’s accumulated payables to the County for these and other services were
approximately $1,532,000 and $8,598,000, respectively.
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Public Health Trust of
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Transactions with the County (continued)

The Trust participated in the County’s self-insured workers’ compensation program until the first
quarter of fiscal year 2008, at which time, PMA Group, Inc. a third party administrator began
processing claims and the Trust established its own self-insurance program for workers’
compensation. The workers® compensation assessment resulted in a liability of the Trust at
September 30, 2008 and 2007, of approximately $18,527,000 and $17,010,000, respectively, of
which $14,798,000 and $12,906,000, respectively, is included in other liabilities, excluding
current portion, in the accompanying statement of Fund Net Assets and the reminder is included
in otlier liabilities current portion. The Trust’s workers’ compensation expense under this
program for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, was approximately $7,972,710 and
$5,971,254, respectively.

The Trust also participates in the County’s partially self-insured employee health insurance
program. The risk-sharing assessment from the County resulted in a liability of approximately
$1,818,000 and $900,000 for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, which
is included in Due to Miami-Dade County in the accompanying Statements of Fund Net Assets —
Trust.

In addition to the above matters, at September 30, 2008 and 2007, Due to Miami-Dade County
included $30,000,000 and $15,000,000 due from the Trust to the County under the Agreement to
partially fond the County’s obligation to the State of Florida under the Medicaid program.

At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Trust recorded a receivable of approximately $29,692,000
and $29,439,000, respectively, for sales taxes receivable.

During 2008, the County authorized an assistance package to be provided to the Trust of
approximately $45,000,000 which for the year ended September 30, 2008, was included in

nonoperating revenue in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net
Assets — Trust.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

7. Sales Tax Revenne

On September 3, 1991, the voters of the County approved a half-cent sales tax to support the
operations of the Trust, effective January 1, 1992. During the Trust’s fiscal years ended
September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Trust recognized approximately $187,408,000 and
$190,872,000, respectively, of sales tax revenue, which is included as nonoperating revenue in
the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets — Trust.

8. Charitable Services
In pursuing its mission, the Trust provides services to financially disadvantaged individuals in
the community in which it operates, despite the lack or adequacy of reimbursement for those

services. The Trust maintains records to identify and monitor the level of such services for the
years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, as follows:

2008 2007

Estimated costs of services to other financially

disadvantaged individuals $ 325,279,031 $ 306,850,221
Estimated costs in excess of reimbursement from State

of Florida programs for services to financially

disadvantaged individuals 206,113,588 197,301,649
Total charitable services $ 531,392,619 $ 504,151,870
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

9. Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use that are required for obligations classified as current liabilities are
reported in current assets. The composition of assets limited as to use at September 30, 2008 and
2007, is set forth in the following table. Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted

market prices.

By Board for self-insurance program:
Cash and short-term investments
Interest receivable

By Board for capital project funds:
Cash and short-term investments
U.S. government agency securities
Interest receivable

By Board for other needs:
Cash and short-term investments

By Board and/or regulators for the Health Plan:
Cash and short-term investments
Interest receivable

Total assets limited as to use

Less: current portion

0810-0989910
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2008

2007

$ 17,613,932

$ 17,683,381

40,475 496
17,654,407 17,683,877
44,269,970 59,300,249
25,251,860 40,225,930

150,717 520,014
69,672,547 100,046,193
5,324,187 3,777,035
5,324,187 3,777,035
45,591,110 58,919,347
- 134,104
45,591,110 59,053,451
138,242,251 180,560,556
(24,308,294)  (17,362,850)

$ 113,933,957

$ 163,197,706
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10. Long-Term Debt, Other Liabilities, and Interest Expense

September 30
2008 2007

Public Facilities Revenue Bonds (Series 2005A),

net of unamortized bond premium of

approximately $2,820,000 and $2,917,000 at

September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively $ 151,580,073 $ 151,677,321
Public Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds

(Series 2005B), net of unamortized bond

premium of approximately $8,546,000 and

$8,841,000 and deferred loss on refunding of

approximately $8,762,000 and $9,668,000 at _

September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively 146,278,952 150,412,222
Total long-term debt 297,859,025 302,089,543
Less: current portion (4,910,000) (4,745,000)

$ 292,949,025  § 297,344,543

On September 27, 2005, the County issued Public Facilities Revenue Bonds and Public Facilities
Revenue Refinding Bonds in the original combined amount of $300,000,000 and collectively
referred to as the Series 2005 Bonds to (i) pay or reimburse the Trust for the cost of certain
additions to the Trust’s health care facilities, (ii) fund a Debt Service Reserve Fund, (iii) refund
all of the County’s outstanding Public Facilities Revenue Bonds (Jackson Memorial Hospital),
Series 1993 Public Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds (Jackson Memorial Hospital), Series
1993A and Series 1998 Public Facilities Revenue Bonds (Jackson Memorial Hospital); aad (iv)
pay certain costs incurred in connection with the issnance of the Series 2005 Bonds including the
premium for a municipal bond insurance policy.

The computations performed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 23 for the current
refunding of the Series 1993, 1993A and 1998 Bonds resulted in a loss on defeasance of
approximately $11,481,000 which is recorded in the accompanying financial statements as a
deduction from long-term debt. This deferred amount is being expensed through 2025 using the
straight-line amortization method. The refunding produced an aggregate present value savings of
approximately $7,000,000. The Series 2005 Bonds bear interest ranging between 3.5% and 5%
and mature serially through 2037,

0810-0989910 48

55



Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

10. Long-Term Debt, Other Liabilities, and Interest Expense (continued)

The Series 2005 Bonds (the Bonds) are secured by the gross revenues of the Trust. The Bonds
are subject to certain covenants included in Ordinance No. 05-49 (the Ordinance), together with
certain ordinances and Series resolutions, which authorize and issue the Bonds by and between
the Trust and the County. In addition, the Trust must comply with certain covenants included in
the Bond insurance agrecments.

The Ordinance contains significant restrictive covenants including, among other items, the
requirement to maintain a minimum long-term debt service coverage ratio, to make scheduled
monthly deposits to the debt service fund, maintenance of insurance on the Trust’s facilities and
limitations on the incurrence of additional debt. In general, the bond insurance agreement
contains the same covenants as the Ordinance. '

The approximate maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as
follows:

Principal Estimated Estimated Total

Payments Interest Payments Debt Service
Year Ending September 30:
2009 $ 4,910,000 $ 14,186,908 $ 19,096,908
2010 5,130,000 13,967,137 19,097,137
2011 5,335,000 13,764,040 19,099,040
2012 5,585,000 13,515,535 19,100,535
2013 5,835,000 13,263,429 19,098,429
2014-2018 33,635,000 61,854,839 95,489,839
2019 -2023 42,875,000 52,615,014 95,490,014
2024 - 2027 54,305,000 41,185,504 95,490,504
2028 - 2032 69,235,000 26,229,937 95,464,937
2033 --2037 68,410,000 7,965,782 76,375,782
$ 295,255,000 $ 258,548,125 $ 553,803,125
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

10. Long-Term Debt, Other Liabilities, and Interest Expense (continued)

Interest expense for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, is summarized as follows:

2008 2007
Interest on bonds $ 14917581 § 15,018,173
Other interest 111,682 48,772
Interest on capital leases - -
Net interest expense $ 15,029,263 § 15,066,945

As described above, the Trust has defeased in substance certain outstanding revenue bonds by
placing proceeds of subsequent bonds issued, previously mentioned, in irrevocable trust with an
escrow agent, investing in U.S government securities, to provide for all future debt service
payments on previously outstanding bonds.

Accardingly, the escrowed funds and defeased bonds are not included in the Trust’s financial
statements. At September 30, 2008, the following bonds are considered defeased:

Series 1993 $ 61,445,000
Series 1993A 36,650,000
Series 1998 58,980,000

$ 157,075,000
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Public Health Trust of
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

10. Long-Term Debt, Other Liabilities, and Interest Expense (continued)

Long-term debt and other liabilities activity for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007,

was as follows:

Bonds payable
Estimated self-insurance
Other liabilities

Bonds payable
Estimated self-insurance
Other liabilities

08100989910

Amount Due
September 30, September 30, ‘Within
2007 Balance Additions Reductions 2008 Balance One Year
$ 302,089,543 § 514,482 § (4,745,000) $ 297,859,025 § 4,910,000
36,228,507 8,422,772  (13,534,794) 31,116,485 5,869,852
7,094,111 25,593,342 (485,542) 32,201,911 15,755,607
Amonnt Due
September 30, September 30, Within
2006 Balance Additions Reductions 2007 Balance One Year
$ 301,575,061 $§ 514,482 § - 3 302',089,543 $ 4,745,000
35,182,484 3,538,927 (2,492,904) 36,228,507 5,569,852
6,562,596 2,431,476 (1,899,961) 7,094,111 5,346,800
51
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11. Capital Assets

Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

A summa:y of the activity in the capital assets and the related accumulated depreciation account
for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, is as follows:

Land improvements
Buildings

Fixed equipment

Movable equipment
Depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation
Net depreciable assets
Land

Construction in progress
Capital assets, nct

Land improvements
Buildings

Fixed equipment
Movable equipment
Depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation
Net depreciable assets
Land

"Construction in progress
Capital assets, net

0810-0989910

Sales,

Balance at Retirement Balance at
September 30, and September 30,
2007 Additions Transfers . Adjustments 2008
$ 29,445,374 $ (72,730) s 443,464 $ 84,867 $ 29,900,975

494,128,424 6,041,125 5,579,204 3,348 505,752,101
117,855,492 14,333,980 240,039 289,552 132,719,063
225,511,153 30,192,707 308,137 (2,161,661) 253,850,336
866,940,443 50,495,082 6,570,844 (1,783,894) 922,222 475
{520,700,504) (50,446,944) — 2,478,570 (568,668,878)
346,239,939 48,138 6,570,844 694,676 353,553,597
36,634,927 - - - 36,634,927
64,425,738 29,369,240 (6,570,844) (5,633,061) 81,591,073 -
$ 447,300,604 $ 29,417,378 $ ~ $ (4,938385) § 471,779,597
Sales,
Balance at Retirement Balance at
September 30, and September 30,
2006 Additions Transfers Adjustments 2007
$ 28,632,793 $ 741,71t $ 70,870 3 - $ 29445374
455,815,371 28,464,462 9,546,298 302,293 494,128,424
113,959,606 5,549,377 201,665 (1,855,156) 117,855,492
201,925,340 45,824,328 929,512 (23,168,027) 225,511,153
800,333,110 80,579,878 10,748,345 (24,720,890) 866,940,443
(480,650,571) (46,861,189) — 6,811,256 (520,700,504)
319,682,539 33,718,689 10,748,345 (17,909,634) 346,239,939
30,747,527 5,887,400 - - 36,634,927
53,700,733 24,314,802 {10,748,345) (2,841,452) 64,425,738
$ 404,130,799 $ 63,920,891 $ — $(20,751,086) § 447,300,604
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

12. Leases

The Trust leases various equipment and facilities under operating leases. Rent expense for all
operating leases was approximately $14,496,000 in 2008 and $12,359,000 in 2007. At
September 30, 2008, future minimum lease payments by year under noncancelable operating
leases are as follows:

Year Ended September 30:
2009 $ 9,690,000
2010 7,618,000
2011 7,033,000
2012 5,329,000
2013 5,329,000

13. Public Medical Assistance Trust Fund

The State of Florida’s “Health Care Consumer Protection Awareness Act” (the Act) calls for an
assessment equal to 1-1/2% of hospital operating revenue as defined to be provided for care of
indigents in the State of Florida. The Florida Legislative session of 2000 passed the “Patient
Protection Act of 2000,” which provided that the assessment be lowered to 1% for certain
services. The assessments are paid to the State of Florida in quarterly increments with the first
installment due no more than six months after the Trust’s fiscal year-end.

14. Self-Insurance Program

The Trust is exposed to various risks of loss related to professional liability, theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employecs; and natural disasters. The
Trust manages its risks for professional and general liability internally and sets aside assets for
claims seftlement. The Trust also participates in the County’s master property insurance program
which provides coverage for most other risks.

0810-099910 53

&0



Public Health Trust of
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

14. Self-Insurance Program {continued)
Professional and General Liability

The Trust established a self-insurance program for professional and general liability claims
beginning in 1975. As an agency of a political subdivision of the State of Florida, the Trust has
sovereign immunity from such claims, except for the waiver of such immunity, to the extent of
$100,000 per claimant or $200,000 per incident. The maximum limitation has been considered in
estimating the reserve for self-insured claims. The Board, at its discretion, has funded
approximately $17,654,00 and $17,684,000 at September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, of its
estimated liability. Such amounts are reflected in the Statements of Fund Net Assets — Trust as
assets limited as to use.

Incidents which might result in claims are required to be reported to the risk management
department of the Trust for investigation. At any one time, claims are in various stages of
processing, including being handled by counsel. In addition, claims may not have been presented
for all reported incidents. Management of the Trust, based on advice of counsel and its
consulting actuaries, and determinations made by the risk-management department, estimates the
reserve necessary to provide for claims based on incidents which have occurred through the
statement of net assets date based on the appropriate sovereign immunity limitation. Accrued
professional and general liabilities losses have been discounted using a rate of 3% for both fiscal
years ending September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Workers’ Compensation

The Trust is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims. No stop loss insurance policy has
been purchased for claims exceeding a certain dollar amount. Claims processing is handled by
PMA Group, Inc., a third party administrator.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

15. Pension Plan

The Trust’s pension plans are presented in accordance with GASB Statements No. 25, Firancial
Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note. Disclosures for Defined Contribution
Plans and No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers. The
objective of these statements, prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, is to enhance the
understandability and usefulness of pension information included in the financial statements of
state and local governmental employers. Contributions are recognized when due. Benefits and
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plans. Plan
investments are reported at fair value.

Florida Retirement System

The Trust participates in the Florida Retirement System (the System), a multiple-employer cost-
sharing, public-employee retirement plan which covers substantially all of the Trust’s full-time
and part-time employees. The System is noncontributory and is administered by the State of
Florida. The System was created in 1970 by consolidating several employee-retirement systerms.
All eligible employees (as defined by the State of Florida) who were hired after 1970, and those
employed prior to 1970 who elect to be enrolled, are covered by the System. Benefits under the
plan vest after ten years of service. Employees who retire at or afier age 62 with six years of
credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit payable monthly for life. The System
also provides for early retirement at reduced benefits, and death and disability benefits. These
benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Trust contributed 100% of the
required contributions. These contributions aggregated $25,784,351 and $25,668,598
respectively, which represents 10.7% and 9.8% of gross salaries for fiscal years ending
September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

A copy of the System’s June 30, 2008, annual report can be obtained by writing to the Division

of Retirement, Cedars Executive Center, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-9000 or by
calling (850) 488-5706.
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Public Health Trust of
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

15. Pension Plan (continued)
Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, Florida, Defined Benefit Retirement Plan

The Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, Florida, Defined Benefit Retirement Plan (the
Plan) was created in 1996 and is an employee-noncontributory plan administered by the Trust.
The Plan does not issue stand-alone financial statements.

All employees working in a full-time or part-time regularly established position who were hired
after Jamuary 1, 1996, are covered by the Plan. Benefits under the Plan vest after six years of
service. Employees who retire at or after age 62 with six years of credited service are entitled to
an annual retirement benefit payable monthly for life. The Plan also provides for early retirement
at reduced benefits, and death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other
requirements are set forth in the Plan document. Benefits increase by approximately 2.5% per
year for cost-of-living adjustments. The board of trustees of the Trust reserves the right to
modify, alter or amend the Plan subject to certain limitations.

Membership of the Plan consisted of the following at January 1, 2008 and 2007, the date of the
latest actuarial valuation: .

2008 2007
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 72 42
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 628 475
Active plan members 6,637 6,347
Total 7,337 6,864
Number of participating employers 1 1

The contribution rate for normal cost is determined using the aggregate actuarial-cost method.
Under this method, the excess of the present value of projected benefits over the actuarial value
of assets is spread evenly over the expected future salaries of the active participants presently
under Normal Retirement Age. This method does not identify or separately amortize unfimded
actuarial liabilities. Gains and losses resulting from fluctuations in Plan experience are similarly
amortized as part of normal cost. The significant assumptions used to compute the annual
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Public Health Trust of
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

15. Pension Plan (continued)

required contribution include an 8% rate of return on investments, projected salary increase of
7% in the first ten years of service and 6% afier ten years of service. The rate of return on
investments and the projected salary increase rate include projected inflation of 2.5%.

The Trust’s funding policy provides for actuarially determined rates deemed sufficient to pay
benefits as due. The assumptions used to compute the contribution requirement are the same as
those used to compute pension benefits earned as previously described under funding status and
progress. The Trust’s funding policy is to make contributions based on a percentage of payroll.
Contributions to the Plan for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 were approximately
$38,067,887 and $33,432,000, respectively. The Trust’s most recent actuarial report as of
January 1, 2008, determined the annual pension cost to be as follows:

Plan Year Ended Percent of Payroll Dollar Amount
December 31, 2009 8.62% $42,996,000
December 31, 2008 8.79% $24,137,469
December 31, 2007 8.84% $31,379,000

The Trust has contributed 100% of the anmual cost for all of the years.
Deposits and Investments
The Plan’s investment authority is derived from the authorization of the Board and is in

accordance with the Florida Statue 215.47 (the Statute) and the Employment Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

15. Pension Plan (continued)

The following is a summary of the fair value (based on quoted market prices) of assets held in
the pension trust fund at September 30, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Investments, at fair value:
Domestic investments:
Equities $ 88,129,207 § 97,758,870
Corporate debt securities 34,362,194 33,091,439
Government and agency obligations 38,905,873 30,925,896
Total domestic investments 161,397,274 161,776,205
International investments:
Equities 5,185,003 4,678,914
Mutual funds 30,786,456 38,278,264
Corporate debt securities 1,869,336 2,053,850
Total international investments 37,840,795 45,011,028
Other:
Cash and short-term investments 21,458,115 13,058,665
Total $ 220,696,182 § 219,845,898
Credit Risk

The Plan’s investment policy (the Investment Policy) is designed to minimize credit risk by
restricting authorized investments to only those investments permitted by the Statute, subject to
certain additional limitations. These additional limitations consist of prohibitions against
investments in derivative securities, options, futures or short positions; however, the Investment
“Policy allows for investments in mortgage pass-through securities. Generally, the Statue permits
investments in the Florida State Board of Administration Pooled Investment account (the SBA
Pool), U.S. government and agency securities, common and preferred stock of domestic and
foreign, corporations, repurchase agreements, commercial paper and other corporate obligations,
bankers acceptances, state or local government taxable or tax-exempt debt, real estate and real
estate securities, and money market funds. With the exception of obligations directly issued or
guaranteed by the U.S. government, investments in the SBA Pool, and certain state or local
government debt instruments, the Statute provides limits as to the maximum portion of the Plan’s
portfolio which can be invested in any one investment category or issuer.
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15. Pension Plan (continued)

At September 30, 2008, the Plan’s investment securities had the following credit ratings:

Domestic investments:
U.S. Government agency securities, by issuer:
Treasury notes
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Equities:

Common stock
Collateralized mortgage obligations
Corporate debt securities:

Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Convertible bonds:
Convertible bonds ~ Victory
Convertible bonds — Victory
Convertible bonds — Victory
Convertible bonds — Victory
International investments:
Equities
Corporate debt securities:
International bonds
International bonds
International bonds
International bonds
Money market

*  Standards & Poor’s ratings
** Moody’s Investor Services ratings

0810-0985910

Fair Value Credit Rating
$ 8,404,040 AAA *
30,501,834 AAA *
87,685,787 Not rated
443 419 AAA *
454,173 BBB+ *
4,359,613 Al-A3 *x
2,878,095 A/AFIA- *
905,938 AAJAA- *
206,516 AAA *
2,925,804 Aal-Aa3/Aaa **
427,688 B1-B3 il
262,288 BB+BB  *
2,833472 BBB/BBB+/BBB- *
362,788 Ba2-Ba3 =~ **
5,520,590 Baal-Baa3  *+
11,554,244 Not rated
830,135 Al-A3 *x
449,925 BB+-BB *
463,296 BBB/BBB+BBB- *
381,803 Not rated
35,971,459 Not rated
ke
129,025 A+
287,357 Al-A3
132,450 B2
865,831 Baal-Baa3
21,458,115 Not rated

$ 220,696,184
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15. Pension Plan (continued)

At September 30, 2007, the Plan’s investment securities had the following credit ratings:

Domestic investments:
U.S. Government agency securities, by issuer
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
U.S. Treasury bills
Equities:
. Common
Collateralized mortgage obligations
Corporate debt securities:
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Convertible Bonds
Convertible bonds — Victory
Convertible bonds — Victory
Convertible bonds — Victory
Convertible bonds — Victory
Convertible bonds — Horizon
International investments:
Mutual funds
Equities
Corporate debt securities:
International Bonds
International Bonds
International Bonds
Intemational Bonds
Money market accounts

* Standards & Poor’s ratings
** Moody’s Investor Services ratings

0810-0989910

Fair Market Value Credit Rating
$ 18,961,597 AAA *
11,964,299 AAA *
92,104,215 NA
5,654,655 AAA *
6,604,717 Al-A3 *x
4,874,938 Aal-Aa3/Aaa **
538,471 B1-B3 bl
1,190,443 Bal-Ba3/Baa **
6,473,339 Baal-Baa3 *
44,125 Caal/Caa3  *
664,469 A/A-
583,635 BBB+/BBB-
9,305,535 NA
139,977 NA
653,935 Al-Aa3
689,365 Baal-Baa3
405,815 BBB-
191,425 NA
731,250 NA
38,278,264 N/A
4,678914 N/A
*%
536,315 Al-Aal
1,391,349 Baal-Baa3
35,750 B2
90,436 Ba2-Ba3
13,058,665 N/A

$ 219,845,898

6T
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

15. Pension Plan (continued)
Custodial Credit Risk

GASB 40 requires governments to disclose deposits and investments exposed to custodial credit
risk. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counter-party to a transaction, a government may not be able to recover the value of investment
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

As of September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Plan’s investment portfolio was held with a single third-
party custodian.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Investment Policy establishes limitations on portfolio composition by investment type and
by issuer to limit its exposure to concentration of credit risk. The Investment Policy provides that
a maximum of 25% be invested in bonds, notes, or obligations of any municipality or political
subdivision or any agency or authority of the State of Florida; a maximum of 80% be invested in
common stock, preferred stock, and interest-bearing obligations of a corporation having an
option to convert into common stock; a maximmum of 75% be invested in internally managed
common stock; a maximum of 80% be invested in interest-bearing obligations with a fixed
maturity of any corporation or commercial entity within the United States; a maximum of 20%
be invested in corporate obligations and securities of any kind of a foreign corporation or a
foreign commercial entity having its principal office located in any country other than the United
States or its possessions or territories, not including United States dollar-denominated securities
listed and traded on a United States exchange; a maximum of 5% be invested in private equity
through participation in limited partnerships and limited liability companies.

0810-0585910 61
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

15. Pension Plan (continued)

At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the composition of the Plan’s investments by investment type
as a percentage of total investments was as follows:

Percentage of Portfolio
2008 2007

Domestic investments:

Equities 39.9% 44.5%

Corporate debt securities 15.6% 15.1%

Government and agency obligations 17.6% 14.1%
Interpational investments:

Equities 23% 2.1%

Mutual funds 13.9% 17.4%

Corporate debt securities 0.8% 0.9%
Other:

Cash and short-term investments 9.7% 59%

The following represents individual investments whose fair value (based on quoted market
prices) exceeded 5% of the Plan’s net assets at September 30, 2008.

Julius Baer Intemnational Equity Fund — Class T $ 14,713324
Brandes/ING 16,073,132
MFO PIMCO/FDS PAC Invt. Mgmt. 11,552,124

$ 42,338,580

Interest Rate Risk
The Plan manages its exposure to rising interest rate risk in fair value by forecasting cash

outflows and inflows. To the extent possible, an attempt will be made to match investment
maturities with known cash needs and anticipated cash flow requirements.

0810-0989910 : 62
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

15. Pension Plan (continued)

As of September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Plan had the following investments with the respective
weighted-average maturity in years.

Weighted-Average

Maturity
2008 2007
Domestic investments:
Equities N/A N/A
Corporate debt securities:
Corporate bonds 13.97 10.44
Corporate bond mutual funds N/A N/A
Government and agency obligations:
Federal Home Loan Bank 7.74 15.10
Federal National Mortgage Association 24.55 20.09
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 21.69 22.35
U.S. Treasury bills 630 538
International investments;
Mutual funds N/A N/A
Equities N/A N/A
Corporate debt securities 1631 17.62
Other:
Cash and short-term investments N/A N/A
Feoreign Currency Risk

GASB 40 requires governments to disclose deposits or investments exposed to foreign currency
risk, the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment
or a deposit.

0810-0989910 63
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Public Health Trusf of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

15. Pension Plan (continued)

The Plan’s exposure to foreign currency risk at September 30, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

Fair Market Value
Carrency 2008 2007
(U.S. dollars)
International equities:
Common stock Canadian Dollars - $ 2,331,861 $ 2,497,290
Common stock Swiss Franc 318,295 -
Common stock Japanese Yen 154,440 -
Common stock British Pounds 730,972 -
Common stock Chinese Yuan Renminbi 1,197,927 726,304
Common stock Indian Rupee 84,672 189,792
Common stock Russian Rouble 366,836 509,820
Common stock Euros - 173,922
Common stock Hong Kong Dollars - 410,916
Commonr stock Korean Won — 170,870

$ 5185003 § 4678914

International corporate debt securities: : .
Corporate bonds Canadian Dollars S 314,292 § 748,573

Corporate bonds Euro 309321 728,457
Corporate bonds Israeli New Shekel 188,275 -
Corporate bonds Caymanian Dollar 265,900 -
Corporate bonds Brazilian Real 222,527 257,567
Corporate bonds British Pounds 569,022 297,753
Corporate bonds Singapore Dollars - 21,500

$ 1869337 § 2,053,850

In addition, at September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Plan’s investments include approximately
$30,786,000 and $38,278,000, respectively, in mutual funds which principally invest in
international stocks and other international securities. Although these mutual funds are United
States dollar-denominated and United States exchange traded, the underlying investments expose
the Plan to an additional degree of foreign currency risk.

0810-0989910 64
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

16. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

During the year ended September 30, 2008, the Trust implemented GASB Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employees for Postemploymens Benefits other Than
Persons.

Plan Description
The Public Health Trust (the Trust) administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare
plan (the Plan) that provides postretirement medical and dental coverage to retirees as well as
their eligible spouses and dependents. Benpefits are provided through the Trust’s group health
insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. The Plan does not issue a publicly
available financial report.
Eligibility: To be eligible to receive retiree medical and dental benefits, participants must be
eligible for retirement benefits under the Florida Retirement System (FRS) or The Public Health
Trust of Miami-Dade County, Florida Defined Benefit Retirement Plan and pay required
contributions.

» Regular Class (All employees not identified as members of the Special Risk Class)

¢ Eligibility for Unreduced Pension Benefits.

— Age 62 with 6 years of service
— 30 years of service (no age requirement)

» Eligibility for Reduced Pension Benefits.

— 6 years of service
¢ Special Risk Class (Police Officers, Firefighters and Corrections Officers)
¢ Eligibility for Unreduced Pension Benefits,

— Age 55 with 6 years of special risk service
— 25 years of special risk service (no age requirement)

0810-0989910 65
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

16. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (continued)

— Apge 52 and 25 years of creditable service, including special risk service and up to
maximum of 4 years of active duty wartime military service credit,
—~ Regular Class criteria

» Eligibility for Reduced Pension Benefits.
— 6 years of service (no age requirement)

Benefits: The medical plans offered provide hospital, medical and pharmacy coverage. Pre-65
retirees are able to select from five medical plans as follows.

AvMed POS

AvMed HMO High Option
AvMed HMO Low Option
JMH HMO High Option
JMH HMO Low Option

Post-65 retirees are able to select from five medical plans as follows. The Trust only contributes
to post-65 retirees electing an AvMed Medicare Supplement Plan.

» AvMed Medicare Supplement Low Option

* AvMed Medicare Supplement High Option with RX

e AvMed Medicare Supplement High Option without RX

+» JMH HMO High Option

» JMH HMO Low Option

Number of covered participants:
Actives 10,058
Retirees under age 65 296
Eligible spouses under age 65 61
Retirees age 65 and over 440
Eligible spouses age 65 and over 77

Total covered participants 10,932

0810-0989910 66
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

16. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (continued)
Funding Policy

The Trust contributes to both the pre-65 and post-65 retiree medical coverage. Retirees pay the
full cost of dental coverage. Medical contributions vary based on plan and tier. For pre-65
retirees, the Trust explicitly contributed an average of 21% of the cost for the AvMed POS plan,
41% for the AvMed HMO High and AvMed HMO Low plans in fiscal year 2008. The JMH
HMO plans receive no explicit contribution. However, it is the Trust’s policy that after fiscal
year 2008 its per capita contribution for retiree health care benefits will remain at the 2008 dollar
level.

The pre-65 retirees also receive an implicit subsidy from the Trust since they are underwritten
with the active employees. The implicit contribution is approximately 5% of the cost. The pre-65
cost is approximately 57% greater than the combined pre-65 and active cost. The post-65 retiree
contributions also vary by plan and tier with the Trust contributing an average of 28% of the

entire plan cost.
For fiscal year 2008, the Trust contributed $3,404,000 to the plan.

The postretirement medical and dental benefits are currently funded on a pay-as-you go basis
(i.e., the Trust funds on a cash basis as benefits are paid). No assets have been segregated and
restricted to provide postretirement benefits.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Trust’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

0B10-0989910 67
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

16. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (continued)

The Trust’s annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year 2008, the first year of implementation of GASB
Statement 45, and the related information for each plan are as follows (dollar amounts in

thousands):

Annual required confribution $ 4,526
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -
Annual OPEB cost 4,526
Contributions made 3,404
Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,122
Net OPEB obligation—beginning of year ~
Net OPEB obligation—end of year $ 1,122

The Trust’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2008 were as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Percentage of Annual
Ended Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Net OPEB Obligation
September 30, 2008 $4,526 75.21% $1,122

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The schedule below shows the balance of the actuarial accrued liability (AAL), all of which was
unfunded as of September 30, 2008 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Estimated UAAL as %
Actuarial .Value of Liability AAL Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (W) (b-a) (a/b) {© ([b-a)/c)
October 1, 2007 $0 $41,693 $41,693 0% $565,299 7%
0810-0989910 68
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

16. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Peunsions (continued)

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions by the Trust are subject to continnal revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
required schedule of finding progress presented as required supplementary information provides
multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern
of sharing benefit costs between the Trust and the plan members to that point. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets.

The actuarial cost method used in the valuation to determine the Actuarial Accrued Liability
(AAL) and the Actuarial Required Contribution (ARC) was the Projected Unit Credit Method
with service prorated. Under this method, the total present value of benefits is determined by
projecting the benefit to be paid after the expected retirement date (or other event) and
discounting those amounts to the valuation date. The normal cost is computed by dividing the
total present value of benefits by the participant’s total service (actual plus expected service) at
retirement. The AAL under this method represents the total present value of benefits multiplied
by the ratio of the participant’s actual service to date and divided by expected service at
retirement. The AAL for participants currently receiving payments and deferred vested
participants is calculated as the actuarial present value of future benefits expected to be paid. No
normal cost for these participants is payable. The AAL and normal cost were calculated at the
measurement date, which is the beginning of the applicable fiscal year using standard actuarial

techniques.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

16. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (continued)

The following summarizes other significant methods and assumptioas used in valuing the AAL
and benefits under the plan.

Actuarial Valuation date January 1, 2006
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed
Remaining amortization period 30 years
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 4.75%
Payroll growth assumption N/A
Health care cost trend rates 10% initial to 5.25% ultimate
Mortality table RP 2000

Further, the valuation assumes that the Trust will continue to fund the liability on a pay-as-you-
go basis and that the Trust’s policy is that its per-capita contribution for retiree benefits will
remain as the 2008 level. As a result, the retiree contributions will be increased to the extent
necessary so that they are sufficient to provide for the difference between the gross costs and the
fixed Trust contributions,

17. Commitments and Contingencies
Construction and Equipment

The Trust has several construction projects currently in progress at September 30, 2008. The
estimated total cost to date and cost to complete such projects, exclusive of capitalized interest,
are approximately $103,081,000, including certain assets that have been placed in service, and
$316,811,000, respectively.

Annual Operating Agreement

In accordance with the annual operating agreement between the Trust and the University of
Miami (the University), the Trust pays certain amounts for staff and services to be provided by
the University to the Trust. Under the annual operating agreement, costs incurred by the Trust for
the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, were approximately $137,205,000 and
$129,589,000, respectively. At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Trust had a liability to the
University of approximately $24,000,585 and $3,056,000, respectively.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

17. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
Litigation

The Trust is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the ordinary course of
business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be
resolved without material adverse effect on the Trust’s financial position, results from operations

or liquidity.
Corporate Integrity Agreement

The Trust was a defendant in a qui tam action brought by a private party (the Relator) on behalf
of the United States. As a result, the Trust was subject to governmental investigations of certain
Medicaid billing matters. In connection with these matters, the Trust entered into a settlement
agreement in May 2003 with representatives of the United States on those counts in which the
United States intervened. As part of the settlement agreement, the Trust was required to enter
into a Corporate Integrity Agreement (the CIA) with the Office of Imspector General of the
Department of Health and Human Services (the OIG). The CIA has a five-year term from the
date of the settlement and requires the Trust to, among other matters, retain an independent
review organization (the IRO) and submit periodic reports to the OIG. Under the terms of the
CIA, the IRO is required to perform periodic reviews to assist the Trust in assessing its Medicaid
billing and coding procedures and certain other obligations pursuant to the CIA. At
September 30, 2008, the Trust believes it is in substantial compliance with the terms of the CIA.
Failure to comply with the terms of the CIA could result in fines, penalties, and ultimately in
exclusion from the Medicaid program.

Health Care Industry

The health care industry is highly regulated and there can be no assurance that the regulatory
environment in which the Trust operates will not change significantly and adversely in the
future. In general, regulation of health care providers and companies is increasing.

Federal and state laws regulate the health care industry, the relationship between hospitals and
physicians, and the relationship among physicians and other providers of health care services.

0810-0989910 71
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

17. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Several laws, including fee-splitting, anti-kickbacks laws, and prohibition of the corporate
practice of medicine, have civil and criminal penalties and have been subject to limited judicial
and regulatory interpretation. They are enforced by regulatory agencies vested with broad
discretion in interpreting them. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded
estimates will change by a material amount in the near term. Although the Trust believes that its
operations are conducted so as to comply with all of the applicable laws, there can be no
assurance such operations will not be challenged to be in violation of one or more of such laws.

There have been numerous initiatives at the federal and state levels for comprehensive reforms
affecting the availability of, and payment for, health care. The Trust believes that such initiatives
will continue during the foreseeable future. Certain proposed reforms could, if adopted, have a
material effect on the Trust. ,
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Schedule of Employer Contributions (Unaudited)

Year Ended Annual Required (2) Percentage

December 31 Contribution Contributed
2001 $ 8,771,314 100%
2002 $12,711,107 100%
2003 $17,740,441 100%
2004 $25,470,445 100%
2005 $24,353,498 100%
2006 $27,173,600 100%
2007 $34,956,333 100%

(a) The actuarially determined contribution requirements for the Trust’s fiscal year ended
September 30, 2008, are based on actuarial valuations as of Januvary 1, 2008
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Notes to Pension Disclosure Required Supplementary
Information (Unaudited)

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the
actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial
valuation follows:

Valuation date January 1, 2008
Actuarial cost method Aggregate**
Asset valuation method Fair value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 8%
Projected salary increase:

In the first ten years of service 7%

Service after ten years 6%

Cost-of-living increase for all years 2.5%

** The actuarial cost method used does not identify or separately amortize unfinded actuarial
liabilities.
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Public Health Trust of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Schedule of Funding Progress for the Retiree Health Plan (Unaudited)

(In Thousands)

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Estimated VUAAL as %
Actuarial Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-3) _(a) © ([b-a)/c)
October 1, 2007 $0 $41,693 $41,693 0% $565,299 7%
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